

PIERCE THE DARMESS

Table of Contents

| 0. Preface | 3 |
|---|----|
| 0.1 Shoutouts | 4 |
| 1. Introduction | 5 |
| 1.1 Fighting For Freedom | 5 |
| 1.2 Freedom Is Gone Forever, Unless And Until We Take It Back For Ourselves | 6 |
| 2. Tyranny's Spread Is NOT Your Fault, BUT | 8 |
| 3. Growing Hopium In A Toxic Climate | 9 |
| 3.1 Fight, Flight, Freeze, Or Fawn | 9 |
| 4. Every Political System Is Tyrannical | 12 |
| 4.1 Political Intent Versus Political Consequences | 13 |
| 5. Sinformation | 16 |
| 5.1 Intellectual Fuel | 16 |
| 5.2 Deceivil | 17 |
| 5.5 Deceit Is Anti-Power | 17 |
| 5.6 Deceit And The Political Process | 18 |
| 5.7 Deceit And The Spiritual Realm | 19 |
| 6. Living An Illusion | 21 |
| 6.1 The Big Deceit That Started It All | 21 |
| 6.2 It's All Theatre From Here On | 23 |
| 6.3 Stop The Spread's PCR Testing Protocol | 24 |
| 6.4 The Grand Delusion | 27 |
| 6.5 A Shift in the Feeding Grounds | 27 |
| 6.6 Narrative Failures – Past, and Future? | 28 |
| 6.6.1 Nuremberg | 28 |
| 6.6.2 Trump Media Technology Group And "Truth Social" | 29 |
| 7. It's Accountability Time | 30 |
| 7.1 Protesting Against Politicians Or Response Consequences Is Doomed To Fail | 31 |
| 7.2 COVID-19 Response Accountability | 31 |

| 7.2.1 Squeezing Authority | 32 |
|--|----|
| 7.3 Bottom Up: Accountability Ability | 33 |
| 7.4 Top Down: Clipping Tyranny's Tongues | 33 |
| 7.4.1 March On The Media! | 32 |
| 7.5 It Takes You | 35 |
| 8. Seeking Forgiveness | 36 |

0. Preface

This short book has two primary goals. To help end the Evil of Tyranny sweeping the globe, and also to honour God for providing us with a light strong enough to Pierce the Darkness.

What follows will clearly expose the cause of our oppression and show what must be done to beat Evil. To do so necessitates the inclusion of vital details regarding the influence of Information in our world and the critical impact that Deceit has on that Information.

However, I will do my utmost to focus on the high-level fundamentals of the Process that is destroying our lives and save a lot of the details for later, not because those details are superficial or unimportant, but because this moment in time calls for clear direction and specific action.

In other words, Team Liberty needs a unified focus to take down Team Tyranny, and too many details can distract from the message.

Regardless of where you stand in the COVID-19 fight, there's a good chance of feeling the pain of betrayal before the battle is won.

Piercing Truth

There always comes a place in time when Truth strikes at you hard. It matters not if you're prepared to be pierced by its shard. Your screams of pain won't stop its wrath, oh, it will have its toll. And leave your crippled spirit pouring from your wounded soul.

But all's not lost, despite the cost, though good is hard to find.

As anguished grief, like a thick fog, settles atop the mind.

When dark despair swirls through the air, concealing the new light.

Look to the Truth that you deny, it's pride that you do fight.

Betrayal is a bitter pill that tears apart the heart.

But you must only swallow once to shepherd a fresh start.

Though if you do or if you don't, someday you will confess.

It was God's might, in Christ the Light, that did Pierce the Darkness.

Mark F. Gray (with a little help from my big sister Carol)

0.1 Shoutouts

Special thanks and love to Carol and Yvan Gingras for their continued help and support. This book would not have happened without them. Carol prevented innumerable errors from creeping in, and those that remain are all mine.

I would like to convey my deep, heartfelt gratitude to Caroline Lagroix, aka Karolina HartZ, for the beautiful cover art. God's timing is impeccable. Please visit her website at www.karolinahartz.com.

While they are unaware, there are two rock bands whose work was instrumental for getting this book through my struggles all the way to its completion. German metal band Accept and Australian Christian rock band the Newsboys.

Accept's "Too Mean to Die" album literally saved my sanity throughout much of 2021. Of course, it wasn't written for me, but it sure felt like it was.

More recently, several of the Newsboys songs helped strengthen my faith and Belief just when I needed it most.

I can't express how hard I've been on my family over the years, yet they somehow found the strength to stick with me on a long, irrational trek. To Ian and Tammy, Derek and Britney and the little blessing Caius, and my beautiful wife Collette; I love you all more than ever.

God bless them all.

My praise and thanks to God for pointing me in this direction several years ago. At the time I had no idea of the Spiritual journey he had placed me on. I pray this book honours His will.

Mark. F. Gray

January 21, 2022

1. Introduction

So, do you feel that something has gone horribly wrong with our world but are confused as to how it happened, and with growing frustration knowing it occurred on your watch, directly in front of your face? Your eyes are open, you're ready, but still, you just can't see?

Hopefully this book will help clear some needless clutter from your view.

Unfortunately, as many are aware, the Truth often hurts, and the Truth of Evil is incomprehensible to many decent people, making Evil too painful a subject to contemplate, let alone accept. While understandable, our failure to face Evil Tyranny has allowed it to metastasize into the gigantic, global, rapacious, Liberty eating, metastatic cancer it is. One that can't, won't, and doesn't wish to, constrain its insatiable appetite for human destruction.

We can't run from this growing Evil and to beat it we must accept the painful truth that Evil not only exists but also is actively attacking our way of life by successfully dividing society into warring factions, even using our friends and neighbours in positions of Authority against us. We can either wake up to its existential threat, learn it's weaknesses and act to destroy it, or we can bury our heads in the sands of ignorance until Evil's vile grip successfully chokes the last breath of freedom from our lives.

Sadly, most people will not choose to fight until their lives and future face severe distress, which places the rights and freedoms of the rest of society in jeopardy. I urge you to hold on to the fact that a future filled with healing, reconciliation, unity, and Liberty cannot occur until that misery of Evil Truth is felt and known by many. It's just the way it is at this moment in history.

Once we're through this cataclysmic assault on Liberty by the vile forces of Tyranny however, we'll have the knowledge to prevent the Ruling Class from oppressing us for a very long time because after we win this fight, we will oppress the Ruling Class to the point they do serve us. That will prove the moral thing to do for everyone, those with authority and the rest without.

What you are witnessing around you, my friend is literally Hell on earth. Our Power Structure – Government and Authority across the globe – has been corrupted in both the Physical and Spiritual Realms. Every facet of our lives is controlled by an insatiable Evil that obviously won't stop unless we stop it.

1.1 Fighting For Freedom

Regardless of your feelings on the matter, this book accepts the dual nature of humanity and believes that there is a supernatural or Spiritual war raging between Good and Evil which manifests itself in the Physical Realm as the political battle between Liberty and Tyranny.

For those who reject God and the Spiritual Realm outright, please rest assured that because Evil works it's magic in the Physical Realm, its exposure will require secular explanations. For the Religious, rest

assured that the secular explanations have Spiritual consequences, and that the knowledge here can bridge the chasm between the two diametrically opposed groups.

In order to win the fight for freedom, we must come to understand how Tyranny runs its scams. You will come to learn that information is not the same as knowledge. In fact, information is a mere carrier and highly capable of spreading either Truth or Deceit, depending on the desire of those disseminating it.

So, information is the carrier, Deceit the weapon, the media, academia, entertainment, and social media are super spreaders, the target is Perception, Belief is the goal, with the overall objective being to destroy Reality and by doing so, have humanity destroy themselves.

The political model I'll share with you maps the impact of Deceit on the political process and its role in delivering Power. Plus, it allows for early identification of deadly Fake News Narratives. How can this be? Well, read on and decide for yourself if the real challenge of our world isn't the COVID-19 Crisis or Climate Crisis, but an Intellectual Crisis of unimaginable scale.

Although this book will expose Deceit as Tyranny's most powerful weapon to explain how Tyranny uses Politics to gain Power and advance it's Evil agenda, my desire for you is one of understanding, acceptance, and much forgiveness in the near term while seeking to advance knowledge, wisdom, truth, and Liberty for the long term.

1.2 Freedom Is Gone Forever, Unless And Until We Take It Back For Ourselves

Before we begin, I have bad news and good news for people wondering if they, and the rest of the formerly free world, might lose their civil liberties and Democratic freedoms.

The bad news is they're already gone. The last of them were voluntarily surrendered for "two weeks" back in March of 2020. And no, you don't get them back with a vaccine or any other act of compliance. With respect to freedom, compliance with Tyranny grants Tyranny the right to control your freedom in the future.

It is very important to realize that compliance with Tyranny does not restore freedoms, it only solidifies Tyranny's control and abuse of Authority.

Canadians believe Justin Trudeau's Liberal government was re-elected in September 2021. What most fail to realize is that their votes, even Liberal votes, were successfully ceded to Globalist control when the COVID-19 Response was dropped on the world back in 2020. Our votes are a meaningless joke because every Canadian's vote will again be rendered mute the moment the Evil, corrupt Globalist Power Structure declares another global crisis they aim to solve by stealing people's wealth and freedom.

It gets worse for Canadians, believe it or not. How? Of all the political parties listed on the 2021 Canadian Federal Election ballot, none picked up on, or were willing to admit to, the factual Truth the "Response" violated our sovereignty, so all were simply fighting to be the party elected to manage the

enforcement of the next set of global decrees, turning our political leaders into Global Crisis Managers who manage you and your Liberty for the benefit of Tyranny. As pathetic as this Reality is, not a single one of our political parties were fighting for the Canadian people's right to remain free. Instead, they were fighting for the right of unelected, unaccountable, untruthful, and untrustworthy Globalists to exercise authority over us when they deem it necessary, which will be always and forever.

Other countries are obviously in the same position, everyone's vote is now meaningless.

The good news is that Liberty and Freedom can be ours. Democracies can be fixed, but they must be rebuilt from the ground up with a fresh understanding of Democracy's demonstrable vulnerabilities and weaknesses in order to prevent the morally, ethically, intellectually, and spiritually corrupt from ever gaining Political Power again.

To avoid that ignominious fate, we must set aside our (manufactured) differences and stand strong for Liberty. Be prepared to battle for Liberty Hill as it is the very last hill freedom loving people can die on, and Tyranny is fast encroaching on Liberty's last parcel of turf. The moment Tyranny is crowned King of Liberty Hill, darkness and death will drop on us all.

There can be no lasting Liberty without Truth and no societal healing without forgiveness, but with both we can know in our hearts that the best is yet to come.

So, please be ready to stand strong, forgive others, and most importantly, forgive yourself too and fear not, Truth can Pierce the Darkness, and when it does, Evil will fall.

2. Tyranny's Spread Is NOT Your Fault, BUT....

This message is incredibly important: the vile Tyranny subjecting the world at the moment isn't your fault. It isn't. It's a combination of misplaced trust, corrupt leadership, perceptual vulnerabilities, humanity's social nature, and Evil's purposeful, political Deceit. The chaos and confusion we are mired in is a direct result of the complete and total corruption of our culture and social systems.

We have lost our way, and it is not by random chance or accident. Liberty is under direct, deliberate, sustained political attack, and has been for decades. We didn't arrive at this precipice overnight. In actuality, we all have been born and raised within that corrupt system, meaning we've learned to live and thrive inside it, which makes the corruption much more difficult to discern and accept, particularly for those who are extremely successful within it. The corruption of our world runs deep and wide so rooting it out will obliterate most of our current understandings, and yes, that is a good thing.

You aren't the lone citizen who has been asleep at the wheel. Seriously, name one Western "free world" politician who even questioned the COVID-19 narrative from the beginning? How about a political hopeful, mainstream media institution, or uncensored social media influencer? How many stood against the Narrative, or stand there today when they can clearly see the totalitarian chains being laid around their family, friends, neighbours, and country each and every day?

If those you rely on for leadership, insight, and information swallowed the original narrative as truthful, how could regular people be faulted for following suit? Why would you expect to think differently than everyone else? Few are willing to go there, to willingly venture into the unknown, but they are the few whose perspective might help right now.

Just to be clear, we do not want to return to the Old Normal because that is the corrupt world which has brought us the New Oppression, and to return there only means we'll end up back here. We need to accept that our systems are corrupt and broken and it will take a lot of work to fix them. First, however, is ending Tyranny's rampage.

Although the rampaging Tyranny isn't your fault, it is yours and society's responsibility to stop it. To do that, people need to understand how Tyranny managed to take control of free nations with a single diseased decree.

This book will show precisely how that has happened, which in turn will tell us exactly what we must do to end it.

3. Growing Hopium In A Toxic Climate

As dark as our world seems now, and with greater darkness promised, there is still reason to harbour hope for a free future, particularly if people learn how to identify how Tyranny manipulates us all.

Tyranny is masterful at keeping society divided, confused, and mired in doubt which prevents many from seeing, or accepting, the deadly threat that Tyranny poses until they actually feel Tyranny's bite themselves.

I am not a trained psychologist, psychiatrist, or physiologist with deep knowledge of humanity's typical Fight, Flight, Freeze, or Fawn Responses when facing a terrifying threat. However, as an experienced analyst and observer of critical consequences, it seems to me that humanity's collective threat response is somewhat different from each individual's preferred threat response.

Hope for the future, then, rests with a majority of society banding together in the most difficult of the four responses, Fight.

3.1 Fight, Flight, Freeze, Or Fawn

Humanity's basic responses to imminent danger have been categorized into four distinct reactions known as the <u>Fight</u>, <u>Flight</u>, <u>Freeze</u>, <u>or Fawn Responses</u>. Typically, those responses best describe an individual's preferred, or instinctive, behaviour when surprised by threat, real or imagined. However, as societies are comprised of individuals, societies will also exhibit the same set of threat Responses, but simultaneously, with one threat response dominating the others depending on the situation.

The dominant threat response changes with societal experience and understanding, and it seems like threat response dominance at a societal level is ordered as follows: Flight, Fawn, Freeze, and finally, Fight.

Remember, our first actions are driven by self-protection, which includes our natural instinct to trust and obey Authority.

Collectively, humanity's first reaction to the imagined (we knew nothing) threat of COVID-19 was to engage our **Flight Response**, and we stampeded away from the perceived deadliness of the virus in blind panic. We were in the dark and confused about where to go – the virus is invisible and could be lurking anywhere, on anything, or in anyone – so the Government stepped up with a ready-to-go COVID-19 Response. It was incredibly brutal and harmful, but it matched the perceived seriousness of the threat.

The **Fawn Response** quickly followed. Mask up. Lock down. Queue up. Stay home. On the dot. In the circle. Follow the arrow. Social distance. Do the right thing. Save grandma. Clap for first responders. COVID dances. Protect the children. We're all in it together. Stay safe!

At this moment, however, many have chilled on the never-ending "Response" and have decided to **Freeze** rather than continue toward the catastrophic abyss this oppressive road ends at. Although still unable to act in unity against the threat of Tyranny at this point, compliance to, and trust in, Authority has begun to erode. The Authorities understand this signifies a change in societal perception and that they are facing a serious threat to their position of Power, which is why they react by increasing fear and threat levels against their own people. They are terrified of what comes next, and they should be.

As society learns from experiencing the consequences of totalitarian policy it begins to move to the next threat response. There comes a point in time when the number of oppressed citizens is large enough, knowledgeable enough, and determined enough to pull the rest of society along with them.

The Fighters won't move but the Freezers will look for a better way, and the lone option will be Fight. Fawners will do what they do and flip to Fawn over the new growing societal power of the people. The runners will realize the ground they stand on isn't safe, that their numbers have dwindled to the point of exposure, and so will choose Flight again, but this time, they will flee to the Fighters willing to protect them and their freedom. Please don't take this as a criticism of those folks, they simply need guidance and seek leaders to follow.

We now see humanity moving towards the last response in the growing anti-mandate protests across the globe. People are finally beginning to stand together against the rampaging Evil. This united stance will divide Tyranny's house because Tyranny needs people in the Authority class to perform their dirty work, and those people will no longer accept and abide by Tyranny's word.

Their house would be divided. Our house, finally, would stand united. This will be the day hope trumps fear, and freedom will rise.

So, you see, there is still hope for a free future.

I also hope you are beginning to understand why the vile Tyranny abusing us isn't your or your political opponents fault and that people who work within the Authorities aren't to blame. Evil is very, very good at Evil.

This last step will be a most difficult task, and I can't say I'd have the strength if I lost everything to Tyranny's depredations, but we will need to forgive people who don't deserve it, and we will need to forgive ourselves if we want a healthy, happy, and free society in the future.

So, politicians who issued, or accepted the need for, damaging decrees, police who beat up and assault people for rejecting the Response, the bureaucrats following orders, the teachers who mistreated students, doctors and nurses who did harm to their patients, the CEO's practicing corporate fascism, vapid celebrity shills, and especially the journalists who spread unnecessary fear and ignorance will all need to be forgiven by a society that has been deliberately harmed by those they trusted. Most, like us, are victims of Deceit too, they just happen to work in the wrong place at the wrong time.

Just so there is no misunderstanding, forgiveness doesn't eliminate the need for accountability. Those truly responsible for these heinous crimes against us must face justice, or the corrupt will simply begin anew. That being said, God will judge regardless, and Evil does not fare well in his court.

Keep in mind that it isn't just people who must be held accountable – our corrupt system must also pay a severe price. In other words, we need to tear down and rebuild our Democratic systems, not just eliminate the current leadership.

4. Every Political System Is Tyrannical

Many great thinkers have shared their thoughts and observations regarding Liberty and Tyranny, seemingly in vain considering the state of Liberty across COVID-19 Response land. For example, here is one from the prescient H.L. Mencken where he intimates that the entire point of Fake News is to create false fears for political gain.

"The whole aim of practical politics is to keep the populace alarmed (and hence clamorous to be led to safety) by an endless series of hobgoblins, most of them imaginary.

Even Mencken would be impressed at the enormous global scale and extraordinary political power the imaginary COVID-19 hobgoblin has gifted Tyranny.

If one wants to understand politics in our world today, the quickest path to knowledge comes when we carve society into only two competing Political Power blocs: the Rulers and the Ruled.

Once one does that and adopts the position that the language of Politics is Power, and the currencies of Politics are Wealth and Freedom, it becomes clear that both sides must suppress the other in order to sustain or enhance their control of society's Wealth and Freedom.

Liberty, then, **is the suppression of Tyranny**. Should the suppression fail, as the US Constitution has, Tyranny will gleefully lay its chains of oppression across the shoulders of Liberty.

It is important to realize that Tyranny never sleeps, and it never, ever rests in its ultimate quest for absolute power. This is why free societies must remain perpetually vigilant in their search for Tyranny, because otherwise, freedom will eventually fall.

The best example of why the Ruler/Ruled paradigm is a valid approach is by examining the thought that the US Constitution is a system of "negative liberties", as President Obama himself has stated.

This description is absolutely true, but only from the Ruler's perspective. From the Ruled's perspective, the US Constitution provides a system of "positive liberties", which makes sense as it was designed by the Ruled to suppress despotic Rulers.

Note that the phrase "negative liberties" is equivalent to "not Liberty", which equals Tyranny. It is interesting to note that current Rulers see the U.S. Constitution as Tyrannical. The U.S. Constitution is a beautiful political and foundational document, even if it was long ago breached by systemic political corruption.

The Ruler/Ruled paradigm forces one to accept that every political system is a form of Tyranny, including Democracy. I believe the free world has reached the point it can drop the myth that Democracy is synonymous with freedom.

The style of Tyranny – Fascism, Communism, Socialism, Oligarchy, Monarchy, Democracy, Medical, Scientific, Technocratic, even Republic, are mere adjectives that refer to that government's Power

structure and the mechanisms it uses to control the masses. That stated, a Republic still seems best suited to accommodate smaller government.

In this sense, the type of Tyranny is irrelevant to the Ruled as what matters is their ability to remain in control of their wealth and freedom, which all types of Tyranny aim to claim.

By the way, Anarchy, or the lack of law, is no answer as Power will accrue to the most ruthless and brutal groups roaming the land, so Tyranny would rule once again.

There is a widely held sentiment that Socialism has failed everywhere it's been tried. Keeping within the Ruler/Ruled perspective, the statement is true only on the Ruled side of the Power divide. The Ruler's view on Socialism is that it produces unimaginable wealth, stolen, of course, and absolute political power. To the Rulers, Socialism is a spectacular success and all they have to do is not care about their citizen's lives, which from their perspective, are owned by the State regardless.

Prior to the 2021 Canadian Federal election, Prime Minister Justin Trudeau was labelled a tyrant by political opponents for his handling of the COVID-19 Response. Trudeau taunted his adversaries by suggesting the solution to Tyranny was an election.

Never in history has a Tyranny ended on an election loss because Tyranny, being good at Evil, corrupts the electoral process to ensure it's very survival. Tyrannies do great in elections, often garnering vote percentages in the high 90s. To paraphrase Comrade Stalin, it isn't who votes that counts, it is who counts the votes.

It is absurd to suggest that Tyrannies are removed through a free and honest electoral process. Functioning Tyrannies are eradicated when, and only when, its leaders are eliminated or exterminated, and the corrupt control system is destroyed. That is how life was, is, and always will be.

For those wondering, the above does not constitute a physical threat against the Prime Minister, nor is it advocating one. It is simply pointing out what the Ruled must do to rid themselves of corrupt Rulers along with the system of governance they've thoroughly perverted.

Tyrannies do not function by the Rule of Law, but by the Law of Rulers.

4.1 Political Intent Versus Political Consequences

Many believe that all politicians lie, which only makes it tougher for those who are honest. Regardless, the fact is that politicians can and do mislead constituents which is why policy proposals cannot accurately be evaluated based on political intent.

In fact, intent has nothing to do with consequences: political intent is mere spin shaped to attract your vote, while consequences are the Reality caused by the implementation of political policy.

One quick method of getting an accurate feel of what political policy proposals will actually accomplish is to ask how the policy will impact the control of society's Wealth and Freedom.

Let's take a brief look at battle between Political Intent and Political Consequences for the COVID-19 Response. Feel free to add to the list as it could differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Keep in mind the fact that COVID-19 Response Consequence list is still growing, while the intent remains unchanged.

Moreover, as bad as it is, this list does not mention the traumatic damage done to the world's spiritual, mental, psychological, and physiological health.

A Quick Political Evaluation Of The COVID-19 Response

| Political Intentions | Political Consequences |
|------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Save and protect lives | Business closures |
| | Job losses |
| | Lockdowns |
| | Mandated masks |
| | Social distancing measures |
| | School closures |
| | Park closures |
| | Reduced access to Health Care |
| | Safe circles |
| | Mandatory testing |
| | Quarantines |
| | Increase in public debt |
| | Loss of savings |
| | Increase in private debt |
| | Non-compliance fines |
| | Mandatory vaccinations |
| | Curtailing cultural traditions |

What truly matters in politics isn't what the Rulers or potential Rulers claim as their main objective is always to sway a vote out of you in their quest for Power. In all cases, the policy's consequential impact on our lives is the most important factor.

Power, the control of Wealth and Freedom, is a zero-sum game but the problem is that Team Tyranny makes all the rules, has assumed the Authority to apply them, and feel they have the right to punish citizens for rejecting their totalitarian edicts.

The plain Truth is Tyranny won't stop taking until the Ruled stop complying, and if we stop complying, Tyranny will reveal its true nature by reacting in an increasingly totalitarian manner. Is this not an obvious observation of current political activity across the globe?

We, the Ruled, are not on the same boat as the Rulers. We do, however, pay for their massive yacht and, of course, the operating costs and constant upgrades. Plus, we are not allowed on that boat, nor are we allowed to see what the costs and upgrades are being used for.

Tyranny is obviously good at advancing itself against the will of free societies but, great news, Tyranny has an existential vulnerability that can be identified and subsequently eliminated. So, learning how to find that vulnerability is the key to beginning the restoration of freedom and Liberty in this world.

5. Sinformation

Information can be your best friend, or your deadliest enemy so it is important to ensure the information you rely on is reliable and accurate, preferably before consuming it.

Our knowledge base is typically built upon a combination of information and experience, with information providing the majority of our understanding as our direct experience, while most crucial, is very limited.

In effect, our knowledge is constrained, and understanding shaped mainly through the information we consume, which would also be the case for society at large. The internet grants near instantaneous access to more information on more subjects to more people than ever, so individuals and societies should be smarter than ever, yet the entire world is mired in utter chaos.

There must be a reason.

5.1 Intellectual Fuel

There are several amazing parallels between our digestive and intellectual processes. In essence, food is to our digestive system what information is to our intellectual system.

Good food provides the nutrients necessary for the body to perform at optimal levels.

Good information provides the knowledge necessary for peak understanding.

The consumption of "Junk" food, food lacking in essential nutrients, will not properly fuel our physical selves nor satisfy our hunger. We will be left with cravings and the desire for additional consumption. When we quell those cravings with more junk food, we fuel a perpetual cycle of dissatisfaction whose debilitating aspects accumulate to the point of disease, and often, disaster.

The consumption of "Junk" information, information lacking in Truth, will confuse our perceptual process and leave us mired in ignorance. This leaves us confused, with a continuing desire for clarity. If we fill that void with additional false information, we are fueling a perpetual cycle of confusion whose debilitating aspects accumulate into delusional beliefs, which when acted upon can cause disastrous effects such as the rapacious Political Tyranny we see gleefully traipsing around the world today.

The consumption of toxic food can lead to food poisoning and the body reacting violently in an attempt to dispel the poison. If enough toxins are consumed, death looms as a possibility. There is not one person who has been sickened by food poisoning that wants to repeat the horrible experience.

The consumption of toxic information can lead to perceptual poisoning and false beliefs. This is where the digestive and intellectual processes diverge, however, because our minds don't work to reject that

debilitating information when we trust the source. When that happens, our minds connect toxic dots that cannot increase our knowledge, thereby leaving us more ignorant in the process.

It is just as important, if not more so, to protect our minds from junk information as it is our bodies from junk food.

5.2 Deceivil

Philosophers have long struggled to explain the relationship between perception and Reality, with arguments ranging from "there is no reality, only perception" to "Perception is Reality" and much in between.

However, Reality just is what it is, and it exists beyond our perceptions. Our perceptions are merely narrow personal views of Reality, but they are extremely important views because they play a significant role in the formation of Beliefs.

So, if the Information we consume is toxic to our perceptions, meaning it draws our understanding away from Reality, then the Beliefs that are formed from that Information will be delusional to some degree. Additionally, the further from Reality our perceptions travel, the more delusional our Beliefs become, and as that delusion grows, the more dangerous it is for us to act on that delusional Belief.

Similarly, if an entire society's Information is toxic to their perceptions, then that society's Beliefs will become delusional and the more delusional society's Beliefs get, the more dangerous it is for society to act on those delusions.

Obviously, then, because Information provides most of society's knowledge base, any society wishing to remain sane needs to make sure the Information it relies upon is accurate and truthful.

Now Deceit, by purposeful design, is an attack on Reality because it is intended to delude perceptions and Beliefs. The only reason to Deceive is to persuade someone into thinking or acting in the Deceiver's best interest.

On a personal level, Deceiving someone is ugly and vile but scaled up to the societal level, Deceiving everyone is simply Evil.

5.5 Deceit Is Anti-Power

Here is a simple look at the general impact Information has on Perceptions and Beliefs.

The path to Truth looks like this,

Reality -> Information -> Knowledge -> Understanding -> Wisdom = Truth

Inject Deceit into Information and the path changes as follows.

Deceit -> Information -> Ignorance -> Confusion -> Foolishness = Delusion

The phrase "Knowledge is Power" can only be true when the Information feeding our minds is based in Reality. If Deceit flips Knowledge into Ignorance, then it follows that "Ignorance is Power".

As odd as that phrase seems, all it suggests is that the Power of Knowledge has shifted from the consumer of Information to its disseminator, which makes perfect sense when you consider that Deceivers are seeking an advantage over the Deceived.

The Deceiver gains Knowledge simply because they understand the breadth and depth of the Deceived's Ignorance and can therefore exploit that Ignorance.

Deceit is a transformative Force and for the consumer of that toxic Information, Deceit is anti-Power. It converts Information from a tool of Good to a weapon of Evil.

When the control of Information is placed in the wrong hands, and those hands are trusted to provide society with the news, what advantage could the Deceivers be seeking?

5.6 Deceit And The Political Process

Public Belief drives the political process, whether that Belief is right or wrong. People will vote for the party they feel is best suited to advance policy that is most in line with their Beliefs.

Now, how would it look if Tyranny attempted to advance itself in a free society by using Truth?

"Hello friends! We are going to tell you what to do and when to do it. Those who dissent will be fined, imprisoned, and the worst offenders, terminated. All for the common good, of course.

You will give us your wealth and property immediately! You, your children, and your future now belong to us because we know better than you. Also, we don't like you.

But we care about us, so don't forget to Vote Tyranny!"

It's ridiculously absurd, right?

Obviously, Tyranny cannot drive its totalitarian agenda with Truth, which leaves Deceit as its only option to convince the populace that they intend to do Good when their actual aim is to destroy Liberty.

This is why it's best to evaluate political policy aims by the weight of the policy's consequences and not the spin of political intent.

Deceit is Tyranny's talisman, and Tyranny simply can't survive without it. All Tyranny needs is majority control of the Information society consumes. Plug in Deceit, sway perceptions, Beliefs, and opinions, then presto, people will unwittingly vote to destroy their Freedoms all the while Believing they're defending them.

5.7 Deceit And The Spiritual Realm

It is up to you whether or not you Believe in God, but I would caution those who feel science trumps Faith to the point it's foolish to worship an invisible Force because you too, have Faith in invisible Forces.

For instance, the Four Fundamental Forces of Nature, of which Gravity is one, are invisible Forces. In addition, there are many scientists who are convinced that Reality consists of multiple dimensions, all of which are invisible except the one we can perceive with the senses we have.

So, if science can speak of multiple dimensions, why can't one of them be the Spiritual Realm?

Science and Faith do co-exist, my friends, whether you believe in God or not, and Deceit attacks both our Physical and Spiritual Realities.

My experience is limited to Christianity, but it is doubtful any Deity is happy being Deceived. This is how powerful Deceit is in the Spiritual Realm.

The bible speaks about the Seven Spirits of God, which are,

- 1. The Spirit of the LORD
- 2. The Spirit of wisdom
- 3. The Spirit of understanding
- 4. The Spirit of counsel
- 5. The Spirit of strength
- 6. The Spirit of knowledge
- 7. The Spirit of Fear of the LORD

What do we know about the impact of Deceit? Well, Deceit attacks Reality. It mangles meaning and deludes Belief. It turns **knowledge into ignorance** which then transforms **understanding into confusion** and lastly, **wisdom into foolishness**, which is all that can be expected when one's perceptions are delusional.

Furthermore, what value has counsel if it is rooted in ignorance, confusion, and foolishness except to serve Satan by undermining God? In addition, if knowledge, understanding, wisdom, and counsel are lost, where will the courage to find strength be found? It likely won't among weakened Spirits.

With five Spirits of God diminished and ineffectual, it is near impossible for people to accept the remaining two, the Spirit of the LORD and the Spirit of Fear of the Lord, all but assuring we turn our backs on God, which allows Satan to flourish in our physical world.

The singular tactic of injecting Deceit into our minds is key to Satan's Spiritual victory as well as Tyranny's political success. It is not a complicated strategy, which makes it simple to implement, but it is powerful enough to destroy Reality, which will take the Truth and Liberty with it when it falls.

Satan's purpose for Deceit is to destroy Reality in both Realms, causing people to commit Evil against one another in the Physical Realm and because of that, to be shunned by God in the Spiritual Realm.

Deceit is the most powerful weapon in the Universe. It is key to humanity's self destruction, and if we're to survive at all as Free people, we need to become better at discerning Deceit and it is absolutely imperative we eliminate it from our Information streams.

6. Living An Illusion

The last chapter showed the deadly impact of Deceit on perceptions, Beliefs, the Spiritual Realm, and the political process.

We know that Tyranny cannot drive its oppressive agenda on a free people without the use of Deceit, and this chapter will reveal the massive Deceits used to justify the implementation of the political COVID-19 Response and also expose the abusive cruelty of the Deceits sustaining the unending "Stop The Spread" program.

Furthermore, we'll see why politicians aren't at the top of the political food chain, and simple proof of why Deceit transforms knowledge into ignorance and understanding into confusion, which will uncover the true role Rand Paul types are playing in the illusion we're living in. No offence to Rand Paul intended.

6.1 The Big Deceit That Started It All

Imperial College London's Niall Ferguson's novel coronavirus model projected terrifying COVID-19 death totals that caused fear and panic to race across the planet. That fear prompted politicians to drop the COVID-19 Response on us all.

Because policy consequences are always a better measure of policy intent than political spin, the wildly oppressive nature of the COVID-19 Response was the first indication that the Ferguson model death projections were Deceitful.

The next clue that that something wasn't right was the fact that the coronavirus, being novel was unknown, so projected casualties were guaranteed to be wrong.

Moreover, all model projections are mere guesses until the point in the future that the model's projections can be compared to the Reality that occurred. If the projections don't come close, then the model is useless for any purpose.

Now that we are nearly two years into the COVID-19 Response, the veracity of the models can be determined simply by comparing COVID-19 Deaths to model projections.

According to the January 6, 2022, U.S. data provided by Worldometers, the 22-month COVID-19 death total was listed as 853,612. By comparison, Ferguson's Narrative driving COVID-19 model projected 2.2 million deaths, a little more than 1.3 million higher than the official numbers.

Ferguson's model projection was too high by 61% or a factor of 2.58. This is a huge error, a company killer in the business world. Ferguson's model projections were terribly wrong and are sure to worsen once COVID-19 death counts are reduced to account for serious co-morbidities.

In Italy, for example, a health report claimed only 2.9% of COVID-19 deaths were due to the virus because of co-morbidities found in the remaining 97.1% of deaths. So, lets give some wiggle room and use 10% to give Authorities some small benefit of doubt.

Going back to the U.S. example, reducing the death count by 90% would increase Ferguson's model projection error to a shameful 96%. This is equivalent to being paid \$4000 for a \$100,000 per year contract.

The extremely heavy use of useless model projections by politicians and the media could be brushed off as layman's ignorance of complex subjects if not for the following truths:

- The unsubstantiated projections are always treated as absolute fact.
- The unsubstantiated projections consistently paint a terrifying picture of the future.
- The unsubstantiated projections are never reviewed for accuracy.
- The unsubstantiated projections require the imposition of grand political solutions at great cost to the taxpayer.
- Their political success generates a constant stream of new and dramatic unsubstantiated model projections.

Models have an incredible capacity for Deceit and using unsubstantiated models to justify political policy is proof of corrupt political intent.

Model projections were and are frantically reported as they are necessary to pump up the Fear factor. However, there is another Deceit involved, the Authority's elimination of our Natural Human Response system from the COVID-19 threat equation.

Humanity's Natural Immune Response system ensures over 99.9% of people would not die from COVID-19 each year. That means the COVID-19 Response on its own could only save less than .1% of the population. That is the best the COVID-19 Response could possibly accomplish, and it would fail because that tiny percentage is filled with the weakest and most vulnerable populations.

Eliminating our natural immune system from the threat calculation gives the COVID-19 Response responsibility for saving 100% of the population instead of .1%, or less. The Deceit here is heart rending as it inflates the need for the COVID-19 Response by a factor of 1000, or nearly 100,000%.

Your \$100,000 a year job now pays out \$100. Would you trust this Employer? Throw in the shameful 96% model Deceit described above and you're beautiful \$100,000 contract is worth \$4, and sadly, this estimate is on the high side.

Governments never considered performing due diligence on the obviously fraudulent COVID-19 models. What are the odds any Government is going to admit to such a massive mistake at this point?

These incredibly large Deceits are flat out lies and are the only reason the world was subjected to the COVID-19 Response. There never was a legitimate justification for the draconian policy, which means that it, and absolutely every rule, regulation, harmful consequence, and news story that followed should never have happened.

6.2 It's All Theatre From Here On

We can see how the whole of society is trapped the moment a Fake Narrative is accepted as absolute Truth. That moment is the instant the public's false fears demand real political action with the understanding that the policy solution be robust enough to deal with size of the perceived threat. This dynamic remains in force as long as the Fake Narrative can sustain the public's state of fear.

In order to serve the panicked public, the political class will respond with policy proposals designed to repel the imaginary threat, thereby reducing fears of imminent disaster, and taming the public's panic. Government saves the day!

Obviously, political parties must satisfy their political base in order to survive, so the argument turns to which party's policy will best address the looming peril. However, there is no policy solution that can possibly end the peril because the threat doesn't really exist. However, they have to try in order to show they care.

With COVID-19, the Response was designed by an external source. We know this to be the case because of the near identical actions taken by Governments around the world. The effect is to narrow the bounds of internal policy discussion as all parties are working from within the Response's framework. This plan is, uncoincidentally, very similar to the manner that Fake Narratives corral all discussion, perceptions, and Beliefs within it's borders.

In Reality, every political party is attempting to solve the wrong problem. This guarantees that the solution also be wrong so in the end they're actually fighting about whose policy will result in the least damage to society. It is impossible to escape the Truth that damage will be done when the wrong solution is implemented, and the tsunami of harm generated by the COVID-19 Response proves this Truth beyond any doubt.

As no politicians are willing to attack the Narrative lest the people watching perceive that politician to be indifferent of their fears, which could potentially result in theirs fears coming true, they are all persuaded to dance to the Fake Narrative's tune. A great example in the United States would be Rand Paul and his gain-of-function battles with Anthony Fauci. Senator Paul's position doesn't simply sustain the Narrative, it helps feed the false fears that drive it because the picture it paints is of a more virulent and deadly virus.

Once the wrong policy is implemented, actual consequences and obvious potential consequences become an unlimited source of fuel for a media shark feeding frenzy.

The following short discussion will focus on three insatiable types of sharks: Fake Narrative Drivers, consequence guided Fake Narrative Supporters and consequence guided Fake Narrative Opposition.

A fourth extremely rare type, Fake Narrative Deniers are heavily censored and therefore denied a seat at the boundless buffet.

Let's begin with the Fake Narrative Drivers, the Great Whites of the bunch.

Their job is to keep everyone petrified with fear, to instruct the political class, and to bite the heads off of anyone who threatens to expose the Deceits behind the Narrative. Should they lose the ability to protect the Deceits, they will simply move on to the next Great Big lie and continue their campaign of terror.

Next up are the consequence guided Fake Narrative Supporters who are fast and fierce associates of the Great Whites, the Tiger sharks. Their role also includes defending the Narrative and to report on the real-life consequences of the impact of the Narrative's COVID-19 Response. This allows the media to mix truth into the message, even if those truths are illusory because the consequences shouldn't have occurred. They stand ready with Narrative defending stories whenever some Bull shark successfully makes some Truth known. The subsequently withdrawn hit piece on hydroxychloroquine from the prestigious medical journal, The Lancet, serves as one excellent example.

Last, but certainly not least, are the consequence guided Fake Narrative Opposition, the dogged Bull sharks. This group does their best to expose the Truth and are accumulating mountains of evidence with respect to the damage the COVID-19 Narrative has and continues to do. However, while their work is important, it is still constrained within the Fake Narrative set by the Great Whites and barely slows the big beasts down. In the future, their fantastic work will be useful in helping people grasp the enormity of the crimes that were committed against them.

It is evident that the COVID-19 Response should never have been implemented in the first place, so what has allowed the Fake Narrative to thrive for so long?

6.3 Stop The Spread's PCR Testing Protocol

At this point we know we've been snared in the COVID-19 Narrative Trap and the COVID-19 Response should never have happened. This means all related stories must be misleading and deceptive. Also, we've learned that politicians are not our true leaders as they, along with us, are simply dancing to the Fake Narrative's tune.

Yet it is understandable that some will dismiss those Truths because of a barrage of sensational media reports screaming that the virus is spreading faster than ever, and they still trust the media and Government more than they trust themselves.

Hopefully the following will help them take the next step in their fight against Fear.

The following Q & A is taken from the <u>Alberta Government's PCR page</u>, which was still live on January 7, 2022.

"Q: How many cycles are used in the amplification process, and what is the cutoff threshold for determining a positive result?

A: The number of amplification cycles required to determine whether a COVID-19 sample is positive generally ranges from 15 to 35 cycles, but the threshold is

dependent on many factors specific to each test platform, the equipment being used, as well as the quality of the samples being tested."

You may find the Q & A somewhat confusing; it is and that too is by explicit design. I'll show one example of how their expert wordsmithing deceives the mind before moving on.

Compare the phrases.

"The number of amplification cycles required to determine whether a COVID-19 sample is positive"

"The number of amplification cycles required to determine whether a sample is COVID-19 positive"

The first is as written in the Answer and does not indicate a positive COVID-19 result because it is talking about a sample yet to be tested. It's linguistic slight of mind that tricks perceptions into linking the positive result with COVID-19.

The second statement would refer to a positive COVID-19 result. The deception in the official Answer is no mistake. It prevents the Answer from being labelled a lie, but it is misleading.

However, the confusing aspects are irrelevant in the final analysis which will focus on the number of cycles the amplification process is run, which generally ranges from 15 to 35 cycles.

Running a test at 15 cycles is not the same as running a test at 35 cycles, is it? it is impossible because if they were the same, only one cycle range would be needed. They are different tests and therefore have the capability of producing different results, which is key to the fraud being perpetrated.

In fact, every different cycle rate is a different test from all the others and can produce different results from one another, although once a positive is hit then every higher cycle rate after will also be positive. The Alberta Government is generally allowing 21 different tests to be run, and if there are concerns about test platforms, equipment, or sample quality, then that might necessitate running the process at rates above 35 cycles.

Hypothetically, if you had the responsibility to run the PCR test protocol, what do you think would happen if,

- 1. You decreased testing requirements and the number of tests run?
- 2. You increased testing requirements and the number of tests run?
- 3. You lowered the number of cycles used by the amplification process?
- 4. You raised the number of cycles used by the amplification process?
- 5. You decreased testing requirements and lowered amplification cycle rates?
- 6. You increased testing requirements and raised amplification cycle rates?

I suspect you know with a high degree of confidence how each scenario above, and others unmentioned, would generally impact the number of cases found and reported. I further suspect you understand how consequential the "positive result" surges and wanes is to society's perceptions and how those perceptions might exacerbate feelings of fear or induce relief. Lastly, I suspect you are beginning to understand that the PCR Testing protocol's greatest strength is its ability to generate

surges and wanes on demand, and that those in control of the process can therefore control society's fear or relief level with ease, thereby justifying the next set of political actions.

In other words, Authorities can plan and exploit our fears with unerring accuracy. Back in March of 2020, when they were preparing to implement drastic lockdown measures, they assured us that they could stop the spread and contain the disease within two weeks, saving millions from death and illness in the process.

What did Authorities around the world do to "Stop the Spread"? They imposed dramatic restrictions, increased testing practices, promoted contact tracing policies and implemented the PCR Testing protocol to allow them to "track" the spread of the disease.

Furthermore, keep in mind that the proof above holds true for every variant and virus measured using the PCR Test protocol.

If changing the amplification process' number of cycles can flip a test result from negative to positive, then the problem isn't, as many have come to believe, false positives, but rather the fact that all PCR protocol test results are completely untrustworthy and, therefore, unreliable.

We previously concluded that all COVID-19 facts and stories were illusory because the sizable Deceits used to trigger the Narrative trap meant the COVID-19 Response was unnecessary. Now we see how attaching Fear to the number of cases reported and the manipulation of the PCR test protocol was used to sustain the COVID-19 Narrative Trap.

And, considering that the PCR test protocol produces unreliable results, we must conclude that there is not one single reliable COVID-19 death or case count statistic in any jurisdiction anywhere in the world where the PCR Test protocol was used. I believe that statement is worth repeating with emphasis.

THERE IS NOT ONE SINGLE RELIABLE COVID-19 DEATH OR CASE COUNT STATISTIC IN ANY JURISDICTION ANYWHERE IN THE WORLD WHERE THE PCR TEST PROTOCOL WAS USED!

Still, if Governments disagree I suppose they could quickly prove the veracity of the PCR testing protocol by running samples of influenza-A, influenza-B, a non-COVID-19 coronavirus, and COVID-19 through the 21 different cycle rates. The only positives returned should be for COVID-19. And for all 21 tests.

I welcome they give it a try.

So, the PCR Test protocol is a fraud in and of itself, but there is still another tricky Deceit buried in the "Stop the Spread" Narrative.

Few dispute the fact that the young and healthy are at much less risk of dying from flus and colds than the old and frail because healthy immune systems are much more adept at fighting off infections than weakened ones. The healthiest age group, according to the CDC, is several thousand times less at risk than the most vulnerable age group.

The "Stop The Spread" Narrative, however, treats all COVID-19 infections as equals regardless of risk while simultaneously ignoring the fact that over 99.9% of people would not die from the infection anyway. This trick allows them to hyper-inflate needless Fears into the stratosphere.

Let's say a teenager and their great grandparents test positive. The media headlines scream, three more cases! However, the teenager is several thousand times, or hundreds of thousands of percent, less at risk of death than the great grandparents. That differential, several hundreds of thousands of percent in this example, is the size of the Deceit injected into the media's case count statistic. Twice, in this example. Once for each grandparent.

So not only is the PCR Test protocol a manipulative tool allowing granular control of the number of positives generated, attaching Fear to the number of cases is the cruel con that has enabled the media to continually perpetuate Fear, giving politicians the "evidence" needed to demand society submit to harmful and divisive totalitarian policies.

Maybe this question will help reveal the scam more clearly. Would it be OK for the media to focus only on the number of cases if an infectious disease was spreading like wildfire, but it had a 0% fatality rate? The spread rate would be terrifying, but the fatality rate would make it a non-issue.

The overall COVID-19 death rate, while impossible to know, is similar to the flu and so isn't much higher than 0%.

So, it should come as no surprise that massive Deceits would be required to sustain a COVID-19 Response that should never have happened

6.4 The Grand Delusion

As tough as it is to accept, the Truth we must swallow is that every COVID-19 story and report we've consumed is illusory, and all the COVID-19 data we trusted is unreliable. It's a giant, jagged pill but it's time to swallow it.

We must accept that we've all been snared by the COVID-19 Narrative Trap, that the COVID-19 Response was illegitimate and unnecessary, that the cruelty in the "Stop the Spread" protocol was the deliberate aim, and we have brutalized and fought each other solely for Tyranny's entertainment while paying them dearly for the privilege.

Corporeally, a Fake Narrative destroys the mind with delusion. Spiritually it is a Satanic level Evil. Politically, it is the most devastating system of human oppression ever devised. All together, it is one masterful piece of anti-human, anti-freedom, anti-God weaponry but as invincible as it seems, it isn't omnipotent.

6.5 A Shift in the Feeding Grounds

At first glance, the CDC's withdrawal of support for the PCR Test protocol and the apparent acceptance of the disease resistant strength of our natural Immune Response System both look like major battle wins for freedom. They are, after all, two of the major Deceits used to generate and carry the COVID-19 Narrative's Fear campaign against humanity.

What is important to remember though, is what Tyranny hasn't lost. The COVID-19 Response, control of the infrastructure used to coerce Authority into enforcing totalitarian decrees, and most importantly, the ability to create more Fake Narrative Traps.

Tyranny's release of the PCR Test protocol and acceptance of our natural Immune Response Systems do indicate change is coming, but probably not exactly as we hope. What it says is that Tyranny has lost those arguments to the point they can't plausibly make them any longer. So, they will concede them, lose nothing, and move on to different fraudulent arguments to keep the game going.

In other words, the Great Whites are preparing to move towards new feeding grounds, but we're still the prey.

I suspect Evil Tyranny is quite pleased with the COVID-19's Response successes and they'll strive to run the program as long as possible. It is highly possible that the PCR test replacement will allow them to continue the scam and associate Fear directly with the number of positive cases the new test produces. The next disease threat doesn't need to be COVID-19; it could be any virus with flu like fatality rates because society's fears are now bound to the spread of a disease and not its lethality.

Should we see the relaxation of COVID-19 restrictions it will be tempting to view them as a sign of Tyranny in retreat. Not a chance while they still control the Fake Narrative. Instead, it will be a Sun Tzu like move to convince the people, particularly angry protestors, that Tyranny has been weakened when in fact they will simply be drawing us in toward the next snare.

The next Fake Narrative Trap may be another virus but at some point in the near future, Climate Change Fears will trigger Tyranny's next and likely final play as that Narrative's fears will produce political policy that results in global Energy Poverty. The consequence of Energy Poverty will result in death and destruction on a scale that will make survivors pine for the good old days of COVID-19 lockdowns.

So please, stay vigilant and organized, because this fight doesn't end well until the Fake Narrative is destroyed and those who controlled it are stripped of their ability to do it again.

6.6 Narrative Failures – Past, and Future?

The Narrative Trap's snare can be slipped but as mentioned, escaping it doesn't end the threat. Here are two examples to consider, one from the past and the other a possible future.

6.6.1 Nuremberg

Let me begin by wishing success for the groups fighting for Nuremberg style trials. Their concerted effort to hold responsible those who have committed crimes against humanity using the COVID-19 Response as a tool of terror is admirable and worthy of support. May all these groups prevail, and appropriate justice be done.

However, the fact is, these conflicts are being waged within the COVID-19 Narrative Trap. This means the fights are occurring on the enemy's battlefield and using their rules of engagement. So, just as the call for wearing two masks is an admission that masks don't work, the call for Nuremberg 2 trials is an admission that Nuremberg 1 failed to truly end the Evil responsible for the heinous crimes of the day.

Even if these new trials are successful, those found culpable will not be the people we need to stop in order to secure a free future. They will be sacrificial fodder to convince the masses that justice has been done, while the real Evil slithers behind a new rock knowing they remain in control of the corrupt system that has brought us all to the precipice of disaster.

6.6.2 Trump Media Technology Group And "Truth Social"

Millions of people have placed their trust in President Donald J. Trump to help end the madness sweeping the planet, and for good reason as he has been the most vocal political force willing to call the media out for their ongoing Deceits about every important political topic.

Although President Trump may be the most anti-establishment politician the world has seen in our lifetimes, he too swallowed the COV-aid, or pretended to, and reacted to the public's fears. We know this because he often touts the number of lives his actions saved, an impossibility to prove and only sensible when compared to the Narrative Trap's ridiculous death projections. We also shouldn't forget his unwavering support for the warp speed mRNA vaccines.

For those who feel President Trump had to act, consider that as further proof the Narrative is in control, not the politicians nor the people. This means the Narrative has been our Reality for a very long time, and it has spent that time shaping our cultures and writing our laws.

The laudable purpose of the Trump Media Technology Group is to counter Fake Narratives, giving Truth a voice and freedom a chance. Yet, if he refuses to admit that the Narrative is in control then he will rightly be held responsible for the vast harm being done by the experimental vaccines. It will also mean that "Truth Social" will be born, bred, and raised on top of the most devastating Deceits to hit humanity in known history.

If successful within the current system, the Trump Media Technology Group could evolve from countering the Narrative to controlling the Narrative, where it would eventually succumb to the same human weaknesses that have corrupted our world today.

7. It's Accountability Time

The COVID-19 Response was sold as a temporary solution to keep us safe from harm. Now, after nearly two years of oppressive restrictions, incalculable loss, and coerced enrollment into the largest experimental drug trial in history it's safe to say that, like everything else COVID-19, the temporary promise was a gigantic lie.

Here are the harsh COVID-19 Truths that we must accept if we want to formulate a plan to end the repugnant Tyranny encompassing the globe.

- Deceitful model projections created the public's false fears that necessitated the COVID-19 Response.
- PCR Test protocol Deceits attached those fears to cases to in order to sustain the COVID-19 Response.
- There is no COVID-19 virus in the PCR test.
- There is no COVID-19 virus in the experiential mRNA vaccines.
- There was no COVID-19 data in the original novel coronavirus scare models.
- All the PCR driven COVID-19 statistics are unreliable.
- Because the COVID-19 statistics are unreliable, there are no reliable COVID-19 or variant spread models.
- The unjustifiable COVID-19 Response should never have been imposed.
- Because the COVID-19 Response shouldn't have occurred and the COVID-19 statistics are unreliable, every COVID-19 news story is illusory and misleading.
- Deceits have transformed our knowledge and understanding of COVID-19 into exploitable ignorance and confusion.
- The COVID-19 Response is a deliberate political weapon, not a health benefit.
- Every consequence of the fraudulent COVID-19 Response causes citizens real harm.
- The Fake COVID-19 Narrative is responsible for it all.
- The media are accountable for the Fake COVID-19 Narrative.

These Truths are definitely hard to swallow. They scream betrayal because that is exactly what it is.

The world has been horrifically betrayed by the COVID-19 Narrative, by those who spread that Narrative and most critically, those who designed and planned the COVID-19 Narrative.

However, keep in mind that pretty much everybody got caught up in the original fake COVID-19 Fears, including the majority of the media.

Revealing the Truth of the COVID-19 lies is key to easing societal Fears, which in turn will end the political justification for the totalitarian Response.

Obviously, this is much easier said than done because the media controls the Narratives and won't want to admit to betraying the world.

Still, it is what must transpire for us to truly win our freedoms back. The 64 Trillion-dollar question is, how do we make it happen?

7.1 Protesting Against Politicians Or Response Consequences Is Doomed To Fail

Protesting against the consequences of the COVID-19 Response will do nothing to address the cause of the COVID-19 Response; the Fake Narrative that fueled the fear and panic that swept across the planet. Yes, the easing of rules and restrictions on one or more of the consequences would be welcome. However, unlike the promise to "Stop the Spread" in two weeks, the reprieve truly would be temporary and would last only until Tyranny launched the next fear-fueled Fake Narrative.

Similarly, protesting politicians is also not protesting the cause of the Response. Politicians react to public opinion and if the Narrative shouts "WE'RE ALL GONNA DIE!", people will beg the political class to save them from Fear of the day.

Both of these tactics might win a battle or two, but in the end, Tyranny will still win the War.

We need only win one battle to win the war for freedom; we must destroy the Fake COVID-19 Narrative.

7.2 COVID-19 Response Accountability

Obviously, the COVID-19 Response was designed to defend against a much greater threat than the virus posed, meaning the COVID-19 Response that has crushed so many lives solved the wrong problem and because of the Deceits, we know it to be deliberately so.

This means the COVID-19 Response is the wrong solution and is therefore guaranteed to save less people than the right solution would. It can't be any other way because the wrong solution is never the best solution. So, how would people's perceptions change if they understood their support or acceptance of the COVID-19 Response could only result in more deaths, particularly at such enormous costs? It is an accountability question everyone should be forced to face.

Further pressure would be added by the fact that the greatest number of people the COVID-19 Response could possibly save is less than .1% of the population.

We are all ultimately responsible for the sickening COVID-19 abuses choking the life out living, and its past time to stand and be counted.

Of course, most of us are caught in Tyranny's money trap as well. We have housing, vehicle and other large debt obligations and are reasonably terrified of being unable to cover them. We can't face losing that we already have, including the investments already made. In addition, there are food and service bills to pay simply to sustain our way of life. This insane financial pressure makes complying with Tyranny's edicts the path of least resistance, lest one end up destitute and homeless.

It is natural to want to avoid such a horrible fate, but in Truth, the Financial Trap is another of Tyranny's well-formed coercive weapons designed to force everyone into compliance.

However, are these financial fears not also short sighted? It is irrational to believe that Tyranny's voracious appetite will ever be satiated. If Tyranny has the ability to destroy your neighbours business or job, what rational reason can there be to think they won't find a reason to take yours as well? And why would Tyranny stop there? Tyranny will keep taking until all wealth and property is theirs. Your life savings will be taken, and your retirement home and property confiscated. Ask those who've fled from communist takeovers what happens when the State decides it knows best and owns everything.

Klaus Schwab, founder, and chairman of the World Economic Forum is on record saying that people will own nothing and be happy. Tyranny's aim is to have it all and COVID-19 is but the beginning of the end of global Liberty. When Klaus says we'll be happy, all he means is that those who profess otherwise will be terminated.

So, we must choose. We take the risk now, or we all pay the full price later because passive compliance is not the road to security and safety, it is the super-highway to destruction.

7.2.1 Squeezing Authority

There is a way to stop this Evil, and it is to hold everyone accountable to the Truth of the COVID-19 Deceits and encourage them to do the right thing. A simple strategy, as are the tactics, though pulling it off will require a miracle of Godly proportions.

The key is to apply this one strategy from two directions simultaneously, from the top down and the bottom up. The political class finds themselves between a rock and a hard place at the moment, the rock being the media's Fake COVID-19 Narrative and the hard place being citizens angry with losing their freedom and future.

This classic pincher movement would weaken the impact of the COVID-19 Narrative while firming up citizen resistance and non-compliance at the same time. Political justification for the COVID-19 Response will wane as the Fake Narrative wavers and the pressure of resistance will increase as it forces its way up through the rapidly narrowing hierarchies of the Authority streams.

Game. Set. Match. Dance like there is a tomorrow. If people are willing to hold themselves accountable and do the right thing.

The pressure on the political class would be so great the entire COVID-19 Response would be rescinded within weeks. Their one other political option will be to authorize and convince the police and military to launch lethal attacks against their fellow citizens, but at least that type of brutality ends the charade of COVID-19 being a Health Care issue.

However, don't forget that it is the ability to create the Fake Narrative that is the enemy's strength, and the ultimate goal is not just the easing of COVID-19 Restrictions, it's the destruction of the Narrative machine.

If you read this book you'll see the Truth in the 15 bullet points near the top of this chapter, whether you like what they prove or not. You'll know with 100% certainty that the unnecessary COVID-19 Response is guaranteed to save less lives, which means cause more deaths, while also robbing us of our wealth, freedom, and way of life.

This brings us to the COVID-19 Accountability question.

Are you willing to accept needless political policy that causes more deaths and destroys people's freedoms in the process?

If you aren't but refuse to do anything at all about it, or you somehow find reason to reject the obvious Truth in the COVID-19 lies, then you've chosen to suit up for Team Tyranny in this war against humanity. If you don't appreciate this characterization then as suggested in the Preface's poem, swallow the media's betrayal and shepherd a new start. We want and welcome you on Team Liberty.

7.3 Bottom Up: Accountability Ability

This section is for those who are forced to comply in order to pay the bills and feed themselves. What a terrible position to be placed in, but it does show that Tyranny has no respect for your freedom and is a strong sign the abuse won't end.

All you need to do to stand up for yourself, your family, and your future is to share this book with friends, co-workers and especially your boss with the admonition to read it, hold themselves accountable, and do the right thing.

Now, if you're a boss, and in particular a member of the executive team, you may wish to bail on the Accountability challenge by suggesting employees stick to business matters. Unfortunately, you're the one forcing your own employees to follow totalitarian political dictates that have nothing to do with your business. So, do the right thing and toss the COVID-19 coercion or contact all your political representatives, share this book, and demand they hold themselves accountable and do the right thing.

Now, if you are the politician there is something you can do to prove your heart truly is with the people you serve. Keep reading and you'll know who to share this book with, demand they hold themselves and do the right thing.

7.4 Top Down: Clipping Tyranny's Tongues

For those willing to pay the price, step into the breach and fight the good fight, does it not make sense to marshal all resources, skills, energy, and passion for a direct and sustained assault on the Fake COVID-19 Narrative because destroying it ends the entire reign of terror?

The reasoning is that even if the fight against consequences is won, would the result not represent a meagre relaxation of political Force rather than its complete elimination? Would it not be an illusory win, thereby allowing the Power Structure to do it again a few months from now using a different threat vector? Could our societies survive another COVID-19 size attack? Do we really want to find out?

To decisively win this war, Tyranny's ability to control and spread Fake Narratives must end, so the real enemy we face is the media, and their existential vulnerability is the COVID-19 Deceits. These Deceits are the reason The COVID-19 Response is saving less people, or killing more, whichever perspective you prefer.

The phenomenal success of Tyranny's COVID-19 Response has made it apparent that emotional persuasion is a powerful tool for effecting behavioural change. Would the accountability question bring appropriate emotional pressure to bear? Would it cause people to lose sleep at night? If so, maybe it would be a good place to start the attack against the COVID-19 Narrative.

7.4.1 March On The Media!

If you are a politician and don't feel comfortable marching in protest, then step up and publicly question the media's Deceits by challenging them with the COVID-19 Accountability question.

If you're going to march in protest, make it count by marching on the Media.

The overarching strategy would be to compel every single individual involved in creating and disseminating the fraudulent COVID-19 Narrative to answer the Deceits leading to the COVID-19 Accountability question, but in a very public manner. This extends to everyone working at media institutions large and small, but mostly the executives and any who write or speak on behalf of the Fake Narrative.

What would be the impact of forcing every journalist in your city to answer the COVID-19 Accountability question, and also speak to the Deceits that lead to it, with the intention of posting online their answer along with their names, positions, institution, and location information. What will Tyranny's Tongues do if they're challenged to answer for the massive Deceits that have been used to instill debilitating fear and panic in the public's mind, and the fact they've willingly spread those Deceits at such great cost to their consumers?

It's time for journalists and their bosses to be held publicly accountable for their critical role in perpetuating the COVID-19 fraud. Without them, the politicians would not have been convinced to rob us of our dignity, rights, freedoms, and future.

Really, the only way to decisively win the long war against Tyranny is to stop their ability to spread Fake Narratives. I pray Freedom Fighters see the value in this strategy as well, develop a tactical approach and share this free book far and wide in whatever manner possible.

We can escape the Narrative Trap and secure our free future by using Tyranny's own weapons, tools, and methods against them. I would sure love to see someone from Canada's major media institutions be held accountable. What a glorious day that would be.

7.5 It Takes You

Let's begin with recognizing that one great benefit to these non-violent approaches is that they are based on provable Truth so they won't violate anyone's conscience nor God's will.

The weakness in this strategy is that there is no real infrastructure nor leadership. I've no personal following and my website is off, at least for the moment, so you'll have to step up, hold yourself accountable, and spread this book yourselves.

I'm offering it to anyone who wants to share it with no strings attached. The goal here is to take down Tyranny by ending its ability to control public opinion and political action.

The strength of this strategy is that there is no real infrastructure nor leadership that Team Tyranny can shut down without shutting everything down.

Share this book with every freedom fighting group you know, and also up the Authority stream as mentioned. Anyone who wishes to can make this PDF available on their own website, my only request is that it remain a free download.

If we can stand up and do that this message will spread like the most infectious virus in history. Tyranny's Tongues will be clipped, Satan's Songs will go silent, and freedom, sweet, sweet freedom will be ours.

8. Seeking Forgiveness

I believe that most can foresee that oppression, death, and destruction is our future if we don't end Tyranny's ability to control us with Narrative Traps. So, if we fail to clip Tyranny's Tongues we will end our lives living in a grotesque world of nightmarish misery. The only souls with anything to look forward to will be those whose heart has accepted Christ.

On, the other hand, let's assume we win this war, destroy the Narrative Control system, and deliver justice to those who manipulate the world through it. As fantastic as that will be, there will still be significant challenges to overcome.

First off, there is no going back to the "old normal", as that is the sick system that brought us here, which would be the system we've just fought to destroy. We must accept that our systems of Governance are corrupted beyond repair, and that only the corrupt would wish to keep them. Furthermore, we also must admit that the majority of our laws have been written by the controlling Narrative, and those laws have allowed Tyranny to manipulate us with ruthless abandon.

The people that the Truth will hit hardest are the journalists and other media professionals who worked tirelessly to fuel society's fears and the politicians who implemented the Fake Narrative's demented, oppressive policies.

It will also take a long time to rebuild trust in our Authority streams, and by extension, those who worked in them. We've all suffered enormously and the great damage that has been done can't be undone. Sadly, it gets worse by the day.

There will by many journalists, politicians, and people caught in the Authority streams who will be unable to cope with the Truth of the harm they've unwittingly committed against their fellow citizens. Unfortunately, the people we rely upon to help navigate troubled emotional and mental health waters are all part of our Authority streams, and many psychologists, psychiatrists, preachers, social workers, and counsellors will themselves be in dire need of support.

No matter how angry we are with them, these individuals are our friends and neighbours, after all.

We have been deliberately divided from one another to an incredible degree. It hasn't happened overnight; society has been intentionally blinded to the Truth and guided down this dark road for a very long time. The havoc Evil is wreaking against us is the result of our failure to recognize how Information can be weaponized with Deceit. The confusing, despondent world of despair and grief we live in is the direct result of that failure.

A major requirement of our new world will be the ability to keep our Information streams free of Deceit, at least on a societal level. As chaotic and contentious those years will be, they're much preferable to continuing with Tyranny's heinous plans for our future.

Our misguided trust in the good of Information has been abused through Evil's long control of the Narrative. It has persuaded us to turn our backs on humanity's Spiritual foundation and the subsequent

clouding of our hearts has thoroughly destroyed our moral compass. This is brightly revealed in the contemptuous culture of celebrity worship, which causes so many to honour fame and fortune over all else.

The human race is obviously moving in the wrong direction. We will need to forgive many in order to turn around and bring peace and harmony back into our lives. Now, that forgiveness doesn't absolve those who have committed harms against their neighbours, it is given to reveal our heart to God in hope He will forgive us.

No one can forgive themselves for the sins or harms they've committed. To forgive oneself is an act of justification, not contrition, and leaves the door open to repeat similar vile acts again.

Only God can forgive, and He will only do so for those who accept Jesus as Lord and Saviour.

Open your hearts to the Truth, and He will Pierce the Darkness.

Your humble messenger,

Mark F. Gray